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TOWN OF SILVER CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
FEBRUARY 9, 2021, 6:00 PM
REMOTE MEETING IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE NM OPEN MEETINGS ACT

1. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
2. CHANGES TO AGENDA
3. CEREMONIES
4. PROCLAMATION – “Territorial Charter Day” – February 13, 2021
5. COUNCIL COMMENTS
6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. Regular Meeting on January 26, 2021.
7. PUBLIC INPUT
8. REPORTS
A. Staff Reports:
1) Report on the Territorial Charter Day activities by Bart Roselli, Museum Director.
2) Public programs offered by the Silver City Museum during the COVID-19 pandemic by Bart
Roselli, Museum Director.
3) Discussion about a speed bump policy by Police Chief Portillo.
9. PUBLIC HEARINGS
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
11. NEW BUSINESS
A. Approval / Disapproval of Resolution No. 2021-02: A Resolution adopting the Town’s “Fair
Housing Policy”, “Citizen Participation Plan”, “HUD Section 3 Plan”, “Residential AntiDisplacement and Relocation Plan and Certification”, and “CDBG Procurement Policy” for the
Town of Silver City, Grant County, NM.
B. Approval / Disapproval of Bid #20/21-4: Re-Bid Swan Street & 12th Street Road Diet and
Bicycle Lane Improvements.
12. ADJOURNMENT
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Town of Silver City
Council Members
Name

Elected Position

Ken Ladner
Cynthia Ann Bettison
Lynda D. Aiman-Smith
Jose A. Ray, Jr.
Guadalupe Cano

Mayor
Councilor, District 1
Councilor, District 2
Councilor, District 3
Councilor, District 4

Telephone
534-6346
597-7031
597-7032
313-4944
597-7034

Term of
Office
03/2018 - 03/2022
03/2020 - 03/2024
03/2018 - 03/2022
03/2020 - 03/2024
03/2018 - 03/2022

MISSION STATEMENT OF THE TOWN OF SILVER CITY
Silver City is the hub of an inclusive community settled within a small town that through guided
growth, honors and preserves its historical, cultural, and natural heritage while facilitating jobs,
health, and education resources such that the residents and visitors may enjoy and protect the
recreational opportunities of the area and high quality of life.
Approved by the Town Council on May 25, 2010.

The Council may call an EXECUTIVE SESSION pursuant to NMSA 1978 Section 10-15-1(H) for
the following reasons:
1. meetings pertaining to issuance, suspension, renewal or revocation of a license, except that
a hearing at which evidence is offered or rebutted shall be open;
2. limited personnel matters which means the discussion of hiring, promotion, demotion,
dismissal, assignment or resignation of or the investigation or consideration of complaints or
charges against any individual public employee;
3. deliberations by a public body in connection with an administrative adjudicatory proceeding;
A. meetings for the discussion of bargaining strategy preliminary to collective bargaining
negotiations between the policymaking body and a bargaining unit representing the employees
of that policymaking body and collective bargaining sessions at which the policymaking body
and the representatives of the collective bargaining unit are present;
B. that portion of meetings at which a decision concerning purchases in an amount exceeding
$2,500 that can be made only from one source and that portion of meetings at which the
contents of competitive sealed proposals solicited pursuant to the Procurement Code (13-128 NMSA 1978) are discussed during the contract negotiation process. The actual approval
of purchase of the item or final action regarding the selection of a contractor shall be made in an
open meeting;
C. meetings subject to the attorney-client privilege pertaining to threatened or pending
litigation in which the public body is or may become a participant;
D. meetings for the discussion of the purchase, acquisition or disposal of real property or water
rights by the public body.
Note: NMSA 1978 Section 10-15-1(H) Exceptions (4) relating to students, (9) relating to public
hospitals, and (10) relating to the gaming control board were not listed above since they do not
apply to the Town of Silver City.
For information on what’s happening in local government,
please visit the Town’s website at www.townofsilvercity.org.
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PROCLAMATION
A DAY TO HONOR THE TERRITORIAL CHARTER OF THE
TOWN OF SILVER CITY, GRANT COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
WHEREAS, on February 15, 1878, the Speaker of the Territorial House of Representatives of
the State of New Mexico, Juan B. Patron, presided over passage of “An Act to incorporate the
Town of Silver City in the County of Grant” which was signed that day by the Governor; and
WHEREAS, this act of incorporation constitutes the official recognition by the Territory of New
Mexico that certain rights and powers of self-government shall be granted in perpetuity to the
citizens of the Town of Silver City; and
WHEREAS, for one hundred and forty-three years, this Territorial Charter has provided a
model of local self-government in the State of New Mexico to provide for the health, safety and
welfare of its inhabitants; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 2016-02, the Town Council of the Town of Silver City
deemed it appropriate that the Town and its inhabitants shall annually honor the passage of its
Territorial Charter, and remember those persons responsible therefor;
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Ken Ladner, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of the
Town of Silver City, Grant County, New Mexico do hereby proclaim February 13, 2021 as

"TERRITORIAL CHARTER DAY"
and that the inhabitants of the Town are encouraged to honor said day with a recollection of the
Town’s history and such celebrations as might be deemed appropriate.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused this official seal of the
Town of Silver City to be affixed this 9th day of February, 2021.
(Seal)
_____________________________
Ken Ladner, Mayor
Attest:
______________________________
Ann L. Mackie, Town Clerk

MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF SILVER CITY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
REMOTE MEETING IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE NM OPEN MEETINGS ACT
January 26, 2021, 6:00 p.m.
Present:
Ken Ladner, Mayor
Cynthia Ann Bettison, District 1
Lynda D. Aiman-Smith, District 2
Jose A. Ray, Jr., District 3
Guadalupe E. Cano, District 4

Also, present:
Alex C. Brown, Town Manager
James Reynolds, Town Attorney
Ann L. Mackie, Town Clerk
Freddie Portillo, Police Chief
Priscilla Shoup, Town Planner/Mapper
Robert Higgins, Information Technology Director

1. CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Mayor Ladner called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Clerk
Mackie did a roll call of the Mayor, Councilors and staff.
2. CHANGES TO AGENDA – None.
3. CEREMONIES – None.
4. PROCLAMATIONS – None.
5. COUNCIL COMMENTS – Councilor Aiman-Smith commented on Governor Michelle Lujan Grisham’s State of
the State Address and how the following three things were mentioned as investments for 2021: 1) behavior and mental
health and rebuilding the system after it was demolished a few years back; 2) education, especially preschool and young
education, and 3) internet and broadband access for communities such as Silver City. She cited a quotation of the
Governor and said she felt hopeful after the address. Mayor Ladner thanked all of the city employees for all the work
they did. He mentioned employees removing the snow from the streets in the freezing cold, and commented how firemen,
policemen, and other first responders put their life on the line every day. He read a letter from Mrs. Don Fell that
described how her husband was fishing on Bill Evans Lake and his boat tipped over and he fell into the water and clung
to the boat. She said Silver City Police Officer Brennan Shannon was fishing on the shore, and he went into the water
and pulled Mr. Fell and the boat back to shore. Mrs. Fell’s letter said Officer Shannon was a shining example of
selflessness, courage and heroism, and they were grateful that Officer Shannon lived in their community, as well as the
entire Silver City Police Force.
6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - Regular Meeting on January 12, 2021 – Mayor Ladner asked for a motion to
approve the minutes. Councilor Aiman-Smith moved to approve the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting of the
Town of Silver City of January 12, 2021. Councilor Ray seconded. The Mayor asked if there was any discussion, and
there was none. He asked for a roll call vote. Councilor Bettison voted aye; Councilor Aiman-Smith voted aye; Councilor
Ray voted aye; and Councilor Cano voted aye. Motion carried.
7. PUBLIC INPUT – Mayor Ladner asked Clerk Mackie if any public input was received. Clerk Mackie said there was
no public input received by email.
8. REPORTS –
A. High Desert Humane Society’s Annual Report by Heidi Ogas. Ms. Ogas reviewed the report that was included in
the Council’s meeting packet. She reported on the Annual Animal Intake for the Town for 2020 as follows: for dogs they
took in 186 impounded dogs; 70 stray dogs and 113 owner turn-ins; for cats they took in 119 impounded cats, 130 stray
cats, and 200 owner turn-ins. She said there were 369 dogs taken in and 449 cats taken in. She reported that law
enforcement had been helping out with the animal control and the Silver City Police Department brought in 57 of the
animals, and almost all were dogs, in 2020. She said they took in $2,600 in impound fees and $5,312.47 in licensing.
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She said Paws Cause raised enough money to issue out 984 spay and neuter coupons to the local residents, and they did
444 adoptions and 171 of those went to Silver City residents. She said 212 animals were returned to their owner.
She reported that Silver City Police Department’s Animal Control Officer, Vickie Toney, had been cross-commissioned
so she could help with outlying areas in the county. She said Officer Toney brought in 23 animals from outside the city
limits and they would get counted as county numbers. She reported on the annual comparison of animals and said in
2020 there were a total of 818 animals that came in, and that dogs went down in 2020 and cats stayed steady. She said
there was a decrease in animals coming in and she speculated that with the COVID-19 pandemic more people were
staying home with their animals. She said the cats stayed steady because Officer Toney was being very adamant about
controlling the feral cat population. She thanked Chief Portillo for working with them and said the officers had access
to their facility after hours. There was further discussion.
B. Staff Reports. Manager Brown praised Officer Shannon and said the Town trained him because he was a lifeguard
throughout high school for the Town’s swimming pool. He reported they were working on the capital outlay for the
Legislative Session, and he thanked Priscilla Lucero, Executive Director of the Southwest New Mexico Council of
Governments, for her work. He said the Department of Tourism was interested in a couple of their projects: the Rock
House project, the Little Walnut Road project, and some of the work on the San Vicente Trail. He also thanked Assistant
Town Manager, James Marshall, for working in Santa Fe during the Legislative Session.
9. PUBLIC HEARINGS –
A. Approval / Disapproval of Ordinance No. 1298: An Ordinance to amend the Official Zoning Map from a
Residential B-2 Zoning District to a Highway Commercial Zoning District for tracts of land described as: NE1/4
NE1/4, Section 35, T. 17S., R. 14W., N.M.P.M., Grant County, New Mexico, and more particularly described as:
Beginning at the Northeast corner, on the North line of said NE 1/4 NE 1/4, at a point whence the Northeast corner
of said Section 35, bears N. 88 degrees 51 minutes E., 493.84 ft. Dist.; thence S. 13 degrees 58 minutes E. 200.0 ft.
to the Southeast corner; thence S. 88 degrees 51 minutes W., 451.21 ft. to the Southwest corner on the Easterly
line of New Mexico State Highway NO. 25; thence N. 13 degrees 58 minutes E., 200.0 ft. along the Easterly line of
said Highway to the Northwest corner, on the North line of said NE ¼ Ne1/4; thence 88 degrees 51 minutes E.,
451.21 ft. to the place of beginning. Containing 2.000 acres more or less; NE1/4 NE1/4, Section 35, T. 17S., R.
14W., N.M.P.M., Grant County, New Mexico, described as follows: Beginning at the Northwest Corner, a point
on the Easterly line of New Mexico State Highway NO. 25, whence the Northeast Corner of said Section 35, bears
N. 77° 53’30”E., 1015.73 ft. distant; Thence N. 88°51’E., 451.21 ft. to the Northeast Corner; Thence S. 13°58”W,
100.00 ft. to the Southeast Corner; Thence S.88°51’W., 451.21 ft. to the Southwest Corner; Thence N.13°58’E.,
100.00 ft. to the place of beginning. Containing 1.000 acres more or less; All that part of the NE1/4 NE1/4 of
Section 35, T. 17S., R. 14W., N.M.P.M., Grant County, New Mexico, and more particularly described by metes
and bounds as follows to wits: Beginning at the northwest corner of the tract herein described a point on the
easterly right-of-way line of Pinos Altos Road, whence the northeast corner of said Section 35, T. 17S., R. 14W.,
N.M.P.M. (A USGLO Brass cap found in place) bears N68°43”21”E a distance of 1118.43 feet; thence, from the
point of beginning, leaving said easterly right-of-way line, N88°51’00”E a distance of 451.15 feet to the northeast
corner of the tract herein described; thence S15°17”47”W a distance of 430.02 feet to the southeast corner of the
tract herein described: thence N76°13’46”W a distance of 101.71 feet to an angle point; thence N14°04’49”E a
distance of 196.60 feet to an angle point; thence N84°58’00”W a distance of 326.71 feet to the southwest corner of
the tract herein described a point on said easterly right-of-way line of Pinos Altos road; thence along said rightof-way line of Pinos Altos Road. N13°46’14”E a distance of 168.75 feet to the point and place of beginning.
Containing 2.408 acres more or less; A 2.952+_ acre tract of land being situated in the 35, T. 17S., R. 14W.,
N.M.P.M., Town of Silver City, Grant County, New Mexico, being described more particularly as follows:
Beginning at Corner No. 1, a point on the East line of Pinos Altos Road, and from whence the Southwest Corner
of the NE1/4NE1/4 bears in two courses S13°16’14”W, 268.33 ft and S89°59’44”W, 42.42 ft. distant; thence, along
the East line of Pinos Altos Road, N13°46”14”E for 186.38 ft. to Corner No. 2; thence, leaving the East line of
Pinos Altos Road, S81°16”00”E for 279.70 ft. to Corner No. 3; thence N13° 46’14”E for 143.92 ft. to Corner No.
4; thence S80°01’24”E for 44.53 ft. to Corner No. 5; thence S76°13’46”E for 222.25 ft. to Corner No. 6; thence
S13° 36’14”W for 276.18 ft. to Corner No 7; thence N84° 43’49”W for 552.17ft., to the Point of Beginning.
Containing 2.952 acres, more or less; A tract of land located in that portion of the NE1/4NE1/4 and the
SE1/4NE1/4, Section 35, T17S., R1W., N.M.P.M., Grant County, New Mexico, described as follows: Beginning at
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the Northwest Corner, which bears S. 48°04’49”W., 1605.40 feet from the Northeast corner of said Section 35 (a
found brass cap); Thence S.84°53’08”E., 551.58 ft. along an existing barbed wire fence to Cor.No. 2; Thence
S13°57’58”W., 216.22 ft. to Cor. No. 3; Thence S.89°59’44”W., 561.92 ft. along an existing barbed wire fence to
Cor. No. 4, a point on the Easterly line of Pinos Altos Road; Thence N. 13°33’01”E., 266.67 ft. along an existing
barbed wire fence and also the Easterly line of said Pinos Altos Road to the point of beginning and containing
3.030 acres more or less. A request for a Map Amendment/Zone Change from a Residential A Zoning District to
Highway Commercial Zoning District for a tract of land described as: A 0.1148 acre tract of land situate the
SE1/4 SE 1/4 of Section 26, T.17S, R.14W., N.M.P.M., Grant County, New Mexico, being described more
particularly as follows: Beginning at Corner NO. 1, from whence the Southeast Corner of Section 26 bears in
three courses: S. 88°51’00”W., 225.30 ft., S. 13°50’00”W., 181.51 ft., and N. 88°51’00”E., 943.87 ft. distant; Thence
N. 0°22’00”W., 100.00 ft. to corner No. 2, a set rebar and survkap; Thence N. 88°51’00”E., 50.00 ft to Corner No.
3, a set rebar and survkap; Thence S. 0°22’00”E., 100.00 ft to corner No. 4, a set rebar and survkap; Thence S.
88°51’00”W., 50.00 ft to the point and a place of beginning Containing 0.1148 acres more or less. The Applicant
is the Town of Silver City.
The following parcel has been excluded from the zone change by the request of the parcel owner in this Ordinance
No. 1298; Quarter: NE S: 35 T: 17S R: 14W PT NEQNEQ 1.00 AC, JOINT TENANTS.
Mayor Ladner read the procedures for the public hearing and asked if any members of the hearing board had any ex
parte discussions or communications from any party concerning the case. Clerk Mackie did a roll call and none of the
Councilors had ex parte discussions. The Mayor asked all parties and staff members that intended to give testimony to
identify themselves and be sworn in by the Town Clerk. Clerk Mackie swore in Priscilla Shoup, Town Planner/Mapper.
The Mayor continued reading the procedures, then asked Mrs. Shoup to present the application for the hearing board’s
consideration. Ms. Shoup read through a PowerPoint presentation for the zone change to amend the official zoning map
from Residential B-2/Residential A to Highway Commercial Zoning District. She said the Community Development
Department initiated the zone change request in order to correct the split zoning of the properties being included. She
said she mailed out letters to 15 property owners along Pinos Altos Road to request they include their properties in the
request. She said the updated number of property owners on Pinos Altos Road is five and one on Trapper Road. She said
she was contacted by the property owner on 3010 Pinos Altos Road asking to be removed from the request. She reviewed
Section 3.1.8 in the Town’s Land Use and Zoning Code and stated the intention of the Highway Commercial District.
She reviewed the Town’s Comprehensive Plan of 2017, page 3-24, Item C for Development Regulations-Zoning and
Section 1.3.2 from the Land Use and Zoning Code. She said the Town departments had no comments. She said as
required by Section 6.2.11 of the Land Use and Zoning Code of 2010, the Community Development Department
contacted the 33 property owners as identified by Grant County tax rolls, within 300 feet of the affected area by mail,
about the proposed zone change, and no comments were received. She showed an updated zoning map of the section of
Pinos Altos Road and the one property on Trapper Road. She showed pictures of the area. She said when the Planning
and Zoning Commission made its recommendation to the Town Council, and when the Town Council makes the final
decision, they shall, at a minimum, make at least one of the following Findings, and she read all seven findings. She
stated it was the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission and the opinion of the Community
Development Department that the zone change met Findings 1, 2, and 7. She ended her testimony.
Mayor Ladner asked the Council if they had any questions, and there were none. He asked if the applicant had any
witnesses sworn in, and Ms. Shoup said there was no one else. The Mayor asked if she had anything else to reflect in the
record, and she said no. The Mayor asked Attorney Reynolds to comment on the pending motion since there was a
change in what he read from the agenda. Attorney Reynolds said he believed Councilor Bettison would read a shortened
version of the ordinance because the actual ordinance contained two pages of single-spaced legal description, and no
one should have to do that. He requested that the Town Clerk cite the entire ordinance in the minutes, including the
parcel that was excluded. The Mayor asked if the hearing board was ready to render its decision, and they said yes. He
asked for a motion. Councilor Bettison moved to approve Ordinance No. 1298: An Ordinance for a request for a Map
Amendment/Zone Change (ZC 20-03) for tracts of land located along Pinos Altos Road, from Residential B-2 Zoning
District to Highway Commercial Zoning District, the various tracts containing 2.000 acres located 3030 at Pinos Altos
Road, 1.000 acre located 3020 at Pinos Altos Road, 2.408 acres which has no address but is located adjacent to the
following 2.952 acre tract, 2.952 acres which has no address but is located adjacent to 2800 Pinos Altos Road, and 3.030
acres located at 2800 Pinos Altos Road, acreage is more or less, and a request for a Map Amendment/Zone Change (ZC
20-03) for a tract of land located at 2005 Trapper Road, from Residential A Zoning District to Highway Commercial
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Zoning District, containing 0.1148 acres, more or less. The entire acreage is 11.51 acres in total more or less. The 1.00
acre parcel located at 3010 Pinos Altos Road has been excluded from this Zone Change at the request of the parcel
owner. The applicant is the Town of Silver City. She said the motion is made per the recommendation of the Planning
and Zoning Commission Findings 1, 2 and 7. For the record the Findings are defined as follows: Finding 1: The proposed
amendment is in substantial compliance (or not in substantial) compliance) with the Town’s Comprehensive Plan.
Finding 2: The proposed amendment will not adversely affect the implementation of the goals and policies of the Town’s
Comprehensive Plan (or it will adversely affect the implementation of the goal and policies of the Town’s
Comprehensive Plan). Finding 7: The proposed amendment provides additional flexibility in meeting the objectives of
the Land Use Code without lowering the standards of the Land Use Code. Councilor Ray seconded. There was no further
discussion. Mayor Ladner asked for a roll call vote. Councilor Bettison voted aye; Councilor Aiman-Smith voted aye;
Councilor Ray voted aye; and Councilor Cano voted aye. Motion carried.
B. Approval/Disapproval of Ordinance No. 1299: A request for a Map Amendment/Zone Change (ZC 20-04) from
a Industrial Zoning District to Residential B-2 Zoning District for tracts of land described as: All of Lots
2,4,6,8,10,12,14 and 16, of Block 149 and the East 40 feet of Silver Street (vacated) lying adjacent to said Lots, All
of Lots 1,3,5,7,9,11,13 and 15, of Block 148; All of Lots 2,4,6,8,10,12,14,16, of Block 148. Of the Fraser’s Survey
of the Townsite of Silver City, Grant County, New Mexico. The applicant is SPIN acting as representative for
Twana Sparks. Mayor Ladner read the procedures for the public hearing and asked if any members of the hearing board
had any ex parte discussions or communications from any party concerning the case. Clerk Mackie did a roll call and
Councilors Bettison, Aiman-Smith and Ray had no ex parte discussion. Councilor Cano said she had ex parte discussion
a couple of months ago when Richard Mata phoned her and gave his opinions to her on the matter. She said she did not
know it was going to the Planning and Zoning Commission. She said she suggested he reach out to Manager Brown. She
said another resident, Patrick Conn, called her to give his information, and she gave him the same information, to call
Manager Brown. She said a couple of weeks later he called her to say he received a letter to go before the Planning and
Zoning Commission. She said she told him she could not talk to him anymore, and that it would have to go through the
Planning and Zoning Commission and eventually go to the Council. She said she told him that he would have to go
through the process with the Planning Department. She said she had not spoken to him after that. She said she did not
give either of them any advice, but told them to talk to Manager Brown. Mayor Ladner asked the Council whether
Councilor Cano should recuse herself. He asked Clerk Mackie to poll the Councilors. Councilor Bettison said based on
the comments, no, Councilor Cano did not need to recuse herself. Councilor Aiman-Smith said Councilor Cano was
appropriate in her actions to refer people to the Town Manager so she did not think Councilor Cano should recuse herself.
Councilor Ray said he agreed. The Mayor thanked the Council members. He asked that all parties and staff members
who intended to provide testimony, be sworn in by the Town Clerk. Clerk Mackie swore in Priscilla Shoup, Town
Planner/Mapper, Alex Brown, Town Manager, and Christina Wolford from SPIN. The Mayor continued reading the
procedures. He asked Ms. Shoup to present the application for the hearing board’s consideration. Ms. Shoup read through
a PowerPoint presentation for Zone Change ZC 20-04 for 610 N. Silver Street and stated it was an amendment to the
Official Zoning Map from Industrial Zoning District to Residential B-2 Zoning District. She said the applicant was SPIN,
acting as a representative for Twana Sparks. She said between the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting and the
legal notices being sent out, Twana Sparks bought the property and the sale had been pending; that was the reason for
the change in ownership from the Notice of Decision in their packet. She said Supporting People in Need (SPIN)
requested the zone change from Industrial to Residential B-2 in order to utilize the property at 610 N. Silver Street for a
homeless shelter and therapeutic services. She said the zone change request would not hinder the ability for SPIN to run
their homeless shelter at this property, but would align the zoning district with the surrounding area. She said according
to the Fair Housing Act of 1988, “The Division’s enforcement of the Fair Housing Act’s protections for persons with
disabilities has concentrated on two major areas. One is insuring that zoning and other regulations concerning land use
are not employed to hinder the residential choices of these individuals, including unnecessarily restricting communal or
congregate residential arrangements, such as group homes. The second area is insuring that newly constructed
multifamily housing is built in accordance with the Fair Housing Act’s accessibility requirements so that it is accessible
to and usable by people with disabilities, and, in particular, those who use wheelchairs.” She read Section 2.2 of the Land
Use Code of 2010 that defined a group living facility. She stated the Town departments had no comments after reviewing
the application. She said as required by Section 6.2.11 of the Land Use Code of 2010, the Community Development
Department contacted the 20 property owners as identified by the Grant County tax rolls, within 300 feet of the affected
area by mail, about the proposed zone change. She said the applicant also contacted the same 20 property owners. She
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discussed the input she received from Mary Vega and said she did not receive input from the previous property owners
that contacted her for the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. She said she also received a call from Mr. Richard
Mata and that his questions were about another property that was not part of the request. She showed a map of the
proposed zone change and several photos. She stated when the Planning and Zoning Commission makes its
recommendation to the Town Council, and when the Town Council makes the final decision, they shall, at a minimum,
make at least one of the following Findings, and she read all seven Findings. She stated it was the opinion of the
Community Development Department that the zone change met Finding 1. The proposed amendment is in substantial
compliance (or not in substantial compliance) with the Town’s Comprehensive Plan, and Finding 7. The proposed
amendment provides additional flexibility in meeting the objectives of this Land Use Code without lowering the
standards of the Land Use Code. She ended her testimony. Mayor Ladner asked the Council if there were any questions,
and there were none.
Mayor Ladner asked who would represent the proponent, and he asked if there were any communications from Twana
Sparks. Ms. Shoup said she provided a letter in the packets that stated Twana Sparks was allowing Christina Wolford to
be her representative in this case. The Mayor gave Christina Wolford the floor to present her case. Ms. Wolford stated
they agreed that the proposed amendment met Findings 1 and 7, and it was in compliance with the Town’s
Comprehensive Plan regarding homelessness, and it provides additional flexibility in meeting the objectives of the Land
Use Code. The Mayor asked if there were any questions from the Council, and there were none. He asked if there were
any witnesses that would like to testify in support of the application. Councilor Bettison asked if the zone change was
really to comport with other uses of the area; that the zone change did not impact what SPIN was doing there. Ms. Shoup
said it was correct; that the Town was to align it with the zoning district in the area and it did not hinder what SPIN was
doing to run their homeless shelter there. Councilor Bettison said that was due to the Fair Housing Act, and Ms. Shoup
said that was correct. Mayor Ladner asked if that concluded her case in chief, and Ms. Wolford said yes. Mayor Ladner
asked if there was anyone that had been sworn that wished to testify in opposition of the application, and there were
none. He asked if the hearing board was ready to render its decision, and they said yes. He asked for a motion. Councilor
Cano moved to approve Ordinance No. 1299: A request for a Map Amendment/Zone Change (ZC 20-04) from a
Industrial Zoning District to Residential B-2 Zoning District for tracts of land described as: All of Lots 2,4,6,8,10,12,14
and 16, of Block 149 and the East 40 feet of Silver Street (vacated) lying adjacent to said Lots, All of Lots 1,3,5,7,9,11,13
and 15, of Block 148; All of Lots 2,4,6,8,10,12,14,16, of Block 148. Of the Fraser’s Survey of the Townsite of Silver
City, Grant County, New Mexico. The applicant is SPIN acting as representative for Twana Sparks and it was done with
Findings of the Planning Department, 1. The proposed amendment is in substantial compliance (or not in substantial
compliance) with the Town’s Comprehensive Plan, and Finding 7. The proposed amendment provides additional
flexibility in meeting the objectives of this Land Use Code without lowering the standards of the Land Use Code.
Councilor Ray seconded, and asked if there was any opposition or comments that people were against it or for it. Ms.
Shoup said that from the Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting to now, the Town had received no responses. She
said there were a few that were put into the record at the Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting, but she did not hear
from them again when they re-sent the letters out. Councilor Ray asked how many there were, and she said she had about
four letters and three phone calls, and they were all mostly against it. Councilor Cano said she had some of the same
concerns that she thought Councilor Ray had, but unfortunately it was just to change the zone, and had nothing to do
with the fact that a homeless shelter was there. She said they were separate issues. She said she was raised in that
neighborhood so she knew all the people in that neighborhood, and most of them had lived there multi-generationally.
She said she heard their complaints and concerns and at the same time she there were very generous and loving people
in that neighborhood. She said she hoped SPIN and Dr. Twana Sparks would think about the way they would approach
that neighborhood, and actually not approach that neighborhood, because a lot of people in that neighborhood were not
approached. She suggested they reach out; that it was important to have a homeless shelter and do something to help the
homeless community. She said at the same time it was important to the people that had lived there literally hundreds of
years to feel safe in their space, too. She said it was possible for everyone to get along and for everyone to be okay at
the end of this, but some work needed to be done by whoever was in charge. Councilor Bettison thanked Councilor Cano
and Councilor Ray for their concerns, and said when she asked Ms. Shoup, and when Councilor Cano also stated that it
was not something to stop something, that it can be done as the current zoning is. She said the zone change was to align
it with the zoning in the area and to not have mixed zoning. She said they were just trying to correct the map and it did
not impact the presence of the homeless shelter, one way or the other, unfortunately. Mayor Ladner asked for a roll call
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vote. Councilor Bettison voted aye; Councilor Aiman-Smith voted aye; Councilor Ray voted nay; and Councilor Cano
voted aye. Motion carried.
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None.
11. NEW BUSINESS A. Approval / Disapproval of Notice of Intent Ordinance No. 1300: Labor Management Relations Ordinance to
amend Ordinance No. 1297, relating to Collective Bargaining (Chapter 38, Article II) of the Town of Silver City
Code of Ordinances, curing deficiencies and providing rights, responsibilities, and conditions of continued
existence and transfer of authority upon termination of Local Board. Manager Brown provided the details of why
it was the third time to do the ordinance. He said they met with the individuals of the State that were in charge of the
process and found that the Town’s ordinance did not align with the State Law. He said through their discussions, the
State put out a template so it would be in line with the law. He said the State agreed that if the Town passed the Notice
of Intent Ordinance and move it forward to vote on the Ordinance, the State would tentatively approve it on January 28,
2021. He provided further details. There were no questions. Mayor Ladner asked for a motion. Councilor Bettison moved
to approve Notice of Intent Ordinance No. 1300: Labor Management Relations Ordinance to amend Ordinance No. 1297,
relating to Collective Bargaining (Chapter 38, Article II) of the Town of Silver City Code of Ordinances, curing
deficiencies and providing rights, responsibilities, and conditions of continued existence and transfer of authority upon
termination of Local Board. Councilor Cano seconded. The Mayor asked for a roll call vote. Councilor Bettison voted
aye; Councilor Aiman-Smith voted aye; Councilor Ray voted aye; and Councilor Cano voted aye. Motion carried.
B. Appointment to the Planning and Zoning Commission. Mayor Ladner said Nickolas Seibel had reapplied to
continue his service on the Planning and Zoning Commission. He said the Community Development Director
recommended his reappointment. He said if there were no objections, he would reappoint Mr. Seibel. There were no
objections.
12. ADJOURNMENT – Mayor Ladner concluded the meeting. Councilor Ray moved to adjourn at 7:05 p.m., and
Councilor Aiman-Smith seconded. Mayor Ladner asked for a roll call vote. Councilor Bettison voted aye; Councilor
Aiman-Smith voted aye; Councilor Ray voted aye; and Councilor Cano voted aye. Motion carried.

___________________________________
Ken Ladner, Mayor
Attest:
___________________________________
Ann L. Mackie, Town Clerk
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Top Three Accomplishments of 2020
January 4, 2021
1. Reached and Served the Community with greater impact by pivoting to
all-virtual programming.
*Launched first virtual exhibit “Arte Chicano 2020”, managed Town’s first
virtual 4th of July “parade”; Presented programs through Zoom, Facebook
and YouTube reaching 3,100 people…a 220% increase over the number of
people served in 2019 (1,393); Launched a Silver City Museum You Tube
channel. Increased the number of Facebook followers from 769 in 2019 to
more than 1,300 in 2020.
•

Highest attended adult program- Apache Panel – 320 on Zoom, 95 on YouTube, and 15 through
Facebook Live, more than doubling previous year’s best attended program of 160 at the SILCO.

2. Made an additional 6,000 of the museum’s objects accessible to the public.
*Scanned 3,500 historic photographs of Silver City; entered an additional
1,600 photographic records, entered 750 object records and 300 archive
records into the museum’s catalog system.
3. Reached more than 2,000 customers using the web to create a virtual
COVID-Safe Online Gift Store and Cash Mob partnering with Main Street.
*Showcased 160 products bringing in more than $3,000 in revenue while the
store was closed to in-person visits by the public.

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-02
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE TOWN’S “FAIR HOUSING POLICY”, “CITIZEN
PARTICIPATION PLAN”, “HUD SECTION 3 PLAN”, “RESIDENTIAL ANTIDISPLACEMENT AND RELOCATION PLAN AND CERTIFICATION”, AND “CDBG
PROCUREMENT POLICY” FOR THE TOWN OF SILVER CITY,
GRANT COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
Sponsored by Mayor Ladner
WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Silver City finds that the adoption of a “Fair
Housing Policy”, a “Citizen Participation Plan”, a “HUD Section 3 Plan”, a “Residential Antidisplacement and Relocation Plan and Certification”, and a “CDBG Procurement Policy” are in
the best interests of the Town; and
WHEREAS, each of the above-mentioned Policies and Plans are required to include certain
federally provided terms, representations, conditions, and obligations more fully described in
Appendix “A”, attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein as if fully set forth; and
WHEREAS, the Town Council intends to incorporate by reference all the mentioned and
incorporated federally mandated terms, representations, conditions, and obligations into this
Resolution, to apply and include them where appropriate, and to be bound by them.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town Council of the Town of Silver City
hereby adopts the aforesaid Resolution, which shall include all the terms, representations,
conditions, and all other obligations contained in Appendix “A”, which is attached hereto.
PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED by the Town Council of the Town of Silver City,
Grant County, New Mexico this 9th day of February, 2021.

(Seal)

Ken Ladner, Mayor
Attest:
Ann L. Mackie, Town Clerk
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RESOLUTION 2021-02
TOWN OF SILVER CITY CDBG PROCUREMENT POLICY
A.

CODE OF CONDUCT
No employee, officer, or agent of the grantee shall participate in the selection or in the award
or administration of a contract supported by CDBG funds if a conflict of interest, real or
apparent, would be involved. Such a conflict could arise if the employee, officer or agent;
any member of his/her immediate family; his/her partner; or an organization which employs
or is about to employ any of the above has a financial or other interest in the firm selected for
award.
No officer, employee, or grantee shall solicit or accept gratuities, favors or anything of
monetary value from the contractors, potential contractors, or parties to sub agreements,
except where the financial interest is not substantial or the gift is an unsolicited item of
nominal intrinsic value.
Any alleged violations of these standards of conduct shall be referred to the District
Attorney. Where violations appear to have occurred, the offending employee, officer or
agent shall be subject to disciplinary action, including but not limited to: dismissal or
transfer; when violations or infractions appear to be substantial in nature, the matter may be
referred to appropriate officials for criminal investigation and possible prosecution.

B.

PROCUREMENT PROCEDURES
The grantee designated purchasing officer responsible for procurement of services, supplies,
equipment or construction obtained with CDBG funds shall review all proposed procurement
actions to avoid the purchase of unnecessary or duplicative items. Such reviews shall
consider consolidation or breaking out to obtain a more economical purchase. When
determined appropriate by the grantee, an analysis to determine which approach would be
the most economical shall be undertaken. Procurement requirements, however, may not be
divided so as to constitute a small purchase.
The purchasing officer shall take affirmative steps to assure that small and minority firms,
and women’s business enterprises, are solicited whenever they are potential qualified
sources. The purchasing officer shall also consider the feasibility of dividing total
requirements into smaller tasks or quantities so as to permit maximum participation by small
and minority firms, and women’s business enterprises. Where permitted by regulations,
delivery schedules will be developed which will include participation by such businesses.
Where possible, evaluation criteria will include a factor with an appropriate weight for these
firms.

EXHIBIT 1-Z
CDBG FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION REQUIRED ELEMENTS
In accordance with the 1987 revisions to the Housing and Community Development Act and in an effort to further
Town of Silver City
encourage citizen participation, ______________________________has
prepared and adopted this Citizen
Participation Plan.
Objective A

Town of Silver City
_________________________will
provide for and encourage citizen participation within its area of jurisdiction, with
particular emphasis on participation by persons of low and moderate income. Action items:

1.

Adopt and circulate an Open Meetings Resolution which provides citizens with reasonable notice of
county/municipality upcoming meetings, actions and functions.

2.

Develop press releases on county/municipality meetings, actions and hearings, and circulate to newspapers,
radio and television media.

3.

Develop and maintain listing of groups and representative of low and moderate income persons, and include
on mailing lists of announcements, notices, press releases, etc.

Objective B

Town of Silver City
__________________________will
provide citizens with reasonable and timely access to local meetings,
information and records relating to the proposed and actual use of CDBG funds. Action items:
1.

Public notices, press releases, etc., should allow for a maximum length of notice to citizens.

2.

Appropriate information and records relating to the proposed and actual use of CDBG funds must be
available upon request to all citizens. Personnel and income records may be exempted from these
requirements.

3.

Meetings, hearing, etc., should be conducted at times and locations conducive to public attendance, e.g.,
evenings, Saturdays.

Objective C

Town of Silver City
______________________________will
provide technical assistance to groups and representatives of low and
moderate income persons that request assistance in developing proposals. Note: the level and type of assistance is
to be determined by the county/municipality. Action items:
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1.

Low and moderate income groups should be advised that technical assistance, particularly in the area of
community development, is available from the county/municipality upon request.

2.

Document technical assistance provided to such groups and has documentation available for review.

Objective D

Town of Silver City
____________________________will
provide a minimum of two public hearings to obtain citizen participation and
respond to proposals and questions at all stages of the Community Development Block Grant Program. Action items:
1.

Advise citizens of the CDBG program objectives, range of activities that can be applied for and other
pertinent information.

2.

Conduct a minimum of two public hearings:

3.

a.

One public hearing will be held to advise citizens of the program objectives and range of activities
that can be applied for, and to obtain the citizen's views on community development and housing
needs, to include the needs of low and moderate income people. This hearing will take place prior
to the selection of the project to be submitted to the state for CDBG funding assistance.

b.

A second public hearing will be held to review program performances, past use of funds and make
available to the public its community development and housing needs, including the needs of low
and moderate income families, and the activities to be undertaken to meet such needs.

Publish public hearing notices in the non-legal section of newspapers or in other local media. Evidence of
compliance with these regulations will be provided with each CDBG application, i.e., hearing notice minutes
of public meetings, list of needs and activities to be undertaken, etc. Amendments to goals, objectives and
applications are also subject to public participation.

Objective E

Town of Silver City
____________________________will
provide timely written answers to written complaints and grievances within
15 working days where practical. Action items:
1.

Adopt complaint handling procedures or policies to insure that complaints or grievances are responded to
within 15 days, if possible.

2.

Allow for appeal of a decision to a neutral authority.

3.

File a detailed record of all complaints or grievances and responses in one central location with easy public
access.

Objective F

Town of Silver City
_______________________________will
identify how the needs of non-English speaking residents will be met in
the case of public hearings where a significant number of residents can be reasonably expected to participate. Action
items:
1.

Identify areas where large majorities of non-English speaking persons reside and make appropriate
provisions when issues affecting these areas are to be discussed at public meetings, hearings, etc.
Appropriate provisions will include having interpreters available at the meeting and having briefing material
available in the appropriate language.

2.

Maintain records/rosters of public hearing attendees and proceedings to verify compliance with this
objective.
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FAIR HOUSING REQUIRED ELEMENTS

Town Council
Town
A resolution of the
of the _______________________
_______________________
Silver City
of _______________________
,adopting a fair housing policy, making known its commitment to the
principle of fair housing, and describing actions it shall undertake to affirmatively further fair housing.

WHEREAS; the Housing and Community Development act of 1974 as amended requires that all
applicant for Community Development Block Grants funds certify that they shall affirmatively further
fair housing; and
WHEREAS; the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (commonly known as the Federal Fair Housing Act) and
the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988 declare a national policy to prohibit discrimination in the sale,
rental, leasing and financing of housing or land to be used for the construction of housing or in the
provision of brokerage services, on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, disability, familial status or
national origin; and
WHEREAS; fairness is the foundation of the American system and reflects traditional American
values; and
WHEREAS; discriminatory housing practices undermine the strength and vitality of America and
its people;
Town
Town Council
NOW, THEREFORE, BE RESOLVED THAT the ______________________
of the ______________
of _______________________
hereby wish all persons living, working, doing business in or traveling
Silver City
through this _________________
to know that: discrimination in the sale, rental, leasing, and
Town
financing of housing or land to be used for construction of housing, or in the provision of brokerage
services on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status or national origin is prohibited
Town
by Title VIII of the Fair Housing Act Amendments of 1988; and that it is the policy of the ______________
of ________________
to implement programs, within the constraints of its resources, to ensure equal
Silver City
opportunity in housing for all persons regardless of race, color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status or
Town
national origin; and within available resources the ______________
of ________________
will
Silver City
assist all persons who feel they have been discriminated against in housing issues on the basis of race,
color, religion, sex, handicap, familial status or national origin to seek equality under existing federal
and state laws to file a complaint with the New Mexico Attorney General’s Office or the U.S.
Town
Department of Housing and Urban Development; and that the ________________
of ______________
Silver City
shall publicize this Resolution and thereby encouraging owners of rental properties, developers, builders
and others involved with housing to become aware of their respective responsibilities and rights under
the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988 and any applicable state or local laws or ordinances; and that
Town
the _______________
of ______________
shall undertake the following actions to affirmatively
Silver City
further fair housing:
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(List all such actions to include: mailing copies of this resolution to the real estate community,
banks, developers, community organizations and local media; posting copies of this resolution at
identified locations; distributing flyers; sponsoring schools)

The Mayor will present the Resolution at the February 9, 2021 Town Council Meeting.
This will be displayed at the Community Development Department and additional
effort will be made to create public announcements because of current COVID-19
restrictions. The Town works closely with the Southwest Council of Governments on
local housing projects and will continue to support Supporting People in Need and their
cold weather homeless shelter. All activies will be included on the Town's website and
press releases will be sent to local print media.
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RESIDENTIAL ANTI-DISPLACEMENT AND RELOCATION ASSISTANCE
REQUIRED ELEMENTS

I. Background/Introduction
Section 104(d) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended (42 U.S.C.
5304(d)(4)), Section 105(b)(16) of the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act (42 U.S.C.
12705(b)(16)), and implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 42, specify that a grantee under the
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) must certify that it has in effect and is following a
“residential Anti-displacement and relocation assistance plan” (Plan). As a CDBG grantee,
Town of Silver City
_________________________
must certify to State of New Mexico Department of Finance and
Administration Local Government Division that it has and is following such a Plan.
The Plan must include three components: 1) one-for-one replacement requirements for lower-income
Town of Silver City
housing units, 2) relocation assistance, and 3) a description of the steps _________________________
will take to minimize displacement.
II. Activities Covered by the Plan
All activities involving the use of CDBG funds that cause displacement as a direct result of demolition or
conversion of a lower-income dwelling are subject to the requirements specified in the Plan. Activities
for which funds are first obligated on or after September 30, 1988 are subject to the requirements
specified in the Plan, without regard to the source year of the funds.
III. Uniform Relocation Act
The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended (URA)
govern displacement that directly results from acquisition, rehabilitation, or demolition of real property
Town of Silver City
when federal funds are used. _________________________’s
Residential Anti-displacement and
Relocation Assistance Plan is in no way intended to supersede the URA. CDBG assisted activities may
still be subject to the requirements of the URA.
IV. One-for-One Replacement Units
All occupied and vacant occupiable lower-income dwelling units that are demolished or converted to a
use other than as lower-income dwelling units in connection with an assisted activity must be replaced
with comparable lower-income units. Replacement lower-income dwelling units may be provided by any
governmental agency or private developer and must meet the following requirements:
Town of Silver City
A. The units must be located within _________________________
to the extent feasible, the

units shall be located within the same neighborhood as the units replaced
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B. The units must be sufficient in number and size to house no fewer than the number of

occupants who could have been housed in the units that are demolished or converted. The
number of occupants who could have been housed in the units shall be in accordance with
applicable local housing occupancy codes. The units may not be replaced with smaller units
Town of Silver City
(e.g., a 2-bedroom unit with two 1-bedroom units), unless _________________________
has
provided information demonstrating that such a proposed replacement is consistent with the
needs assessment contained State of New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration
Local Government Division HUD-approved Consolidated Plan.

C. The units must be in standard condition and must at a minimum meet Section 8 Program

Housing Quality Standards. Replacement lower-income units may include units brought from a
substandard condition to standard condition if: 1) no person was displaced from the unit; and
2) the unit was vacant for at least 3 months before execution of the agreement between
Town of Silver City
_________________________
and the property owner.

D. The units must initially be made available for occupancy at any time during the period

beginning 1 year before the recipient makes public the information required under Section F
below and ending 3 years after the commencement of the demolition or rehabilitation related
to the conversion.

E. The units must be designed to remain lower-income dwelling units for at least 10 years from

the date of initial occupancy. Replacement lower-income dwelling units may include, but are
not limited to, public housing or existing housing receiving Section 8 project-based assistance

Town of Silver City
F. Before _________________________
enters into a contract committing it to provide CDBG

funds for any activity that will directly result in the demolition of lower-income dwelling units
or the conversion of lower-income dwelling units to another use,
Town of Silver City
_________________________
must make public and submit in writing to State of New
Mexico Department of Finance and Administration Local Government Division the following
information:
1
2
3
4

5
6
7
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A description of the proposed assisted activity;
The location on a map and number of dwelling units by size (number of
bedrooms) that will be demolished or converted to a use other than for lowerincome dwelling units as a direct result of the assisted activity;
A time schedule for the commencement and completion of the demolition or
conversion;
The location on a map and the number of dwelling units by size (number of
bedrooms) that will be provided as replacement dwelling units. If such data is
not available at the time of the submission to State of New Mexico Department
of Finance and Administration Local Government Division, the submission shall
identify the general location on an area map and the approximate number of
dwelling units by size, and information identifying the specific location and
number of dwellings units by size shall be submitted and disclosed to the public
as soon as it is available;
The source of funding and time schedule for the provision of replacement
dwelling units;
The basis for concluding that each replacement unit will remain a lower-income
dwelling unit for at least 10 years from the date of initial occupancy; and
Information demonstrating that any proposed replacement of dwelling units
with smaller dwelling units is consistent with the needs assessment contained in

the State of New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration Local
Government Division Consolidated Plan.

G. The one-for-one replacement requirements may not apply if HUD determines, based on

objective data, that there is an adequate supply of vacant lower-income dwelling units in
standard condition available on a non-discriminatory basis within
Town of Silver City
_________________________.
In making such a determination, State of New Mexico
Department of Finance and Administration Local Government Division will consider such
Town of Silver City
factors as vacancy rates, numbers of lower-income units in _________________________
and
the number of eligible families on the Section 8 waiting list.

V. Relocation Assistance
Each lower-income person who is displaced as a direct result of CDBG assisted demolition or conversion
of a lower-income dwelling shall be provided with relocation assistance.
Relocation assistance includes advisory services and reimbursement for moving expenses, security
deposits, credit checks, other moving expenses, including certain interim living costs, and certain
replacement housing assistance.
Displaced persons have the right to elect, as an alternative to the benefits described in this Plan, to
receive benefits under the URA, if they determine that it is in their best interest to do so. The following
relocation assistance shall be available to lower-income displacement persons:

A. Displaced lower-income persons will receive the relocation assistance required under 49 CFR
24, Subpart C (General Relocation Requirements) and Subpart D (Payment for Moving and
Related Expenses) whether the person elects to receive assistance under the URA or the
assistance required by CDBG regulations. Relocation notices must be distributed to the
affected persons in accordance with 49 CFR 24.203 of the URA;
B. The reasonable and necessary cost of any security deposit required to rent the replacement
dwelling unit and for credit checks required to rent or purchase the replacement dwelling
unit;

C. Actual reasonable out-of-pocket costs incurred in connection with temporary relocation,
including moving expenses and increased housing costs, if:

1.
2.

The person must relocate temporarily because continued occupancy of the
dwelling unit constitutes a substantial danger to the health or safety of the person
or the public; or
The person is displaced from a lower-income dwelling unit, none of the
comparable replacement units to which the person has been referred qualifies as
a lower-income dwelling unit, and a suitable lower-income dwelling unit is
scheduled to become available through one-for-one replacement requirements

D. Replacement Housing Assistance. Displaced persons are eligible to receive one of the
following two forms of replacement housing assistance:

1.
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Each person shall be offered rental assistance equal to 60 times the amount
necessary to reduce the monthly rent and estimated average monthly cost of

2.

utilities for a replacement dwelling to the “Total Tenant Payment”, as determined
under 24 CFR 813.107. All or a portion of this assistance may be offered through a
certificate or housing voucher for rental assistance under the Section 8 program.
Where Section 8 assistance is provided to the displaced person,
Town of Silver City
_________________________
must provide the person with
referrals to comparable units whose owners are willing to participate in Section 8
program to the extent that cash assistance is provided, it will be provided in
installments.
In lieu of the housing voucher, certificate or cash assistance described above, the
person may elect to receive a lump sum payment allowing them to secure
participation in a housing cooperative or mutual housing association. This lump
sum payment shall be equal to the capitalized value of 60 monthly installments of
the amount that is obtained by subtracting the
“Total Tenant Payment”, as determined under 24 CFR 813.107, from the monthly
cost of rent and average monthly cost of utilities at a comparable replacement
dwelling unit. To compute the capitalized value, the installments shall be
discounted at the rate of interest paid on passbook savings in a federally insured
Town of Silver City
financial institution conducting business within _________________________.

Displaced lower-income tenants shall be advised of their right to elect relocation assistance pursuant to
the URA and the regulations at 49 CFR 24 as an alternative to the relocation assistance available under
CDBG regulations.
VI. Eligibility for Relocation Assistance
A lower-income person is eligible for relocation assistance if they are considered to be a “displaced
person” as defined in 24 CFR 42.305. A displaced person means a lower-income person who, in
connection with an activity assisted under the CDBG program, permanently moves from real property or
permanently moves personal property from real property as a direct result of demolition or conversion
of a lower-income dwelling.
For purposes of this definition, a permanent move includes a move made permanently and:

A. After notice by the owner to move from the property, if the move occurs on or after the date
Town of Silver City
of the submission of a request to _________________________
for CDBG assistance that is
later approved for the requested activity; or

B. After notice by the owner to move from the property, if the move occurs on or after the date
of the initial official submission to HUD of the consolidated plan under 24 CFR Part 91
describing the assisted activity; or

Town of Silver City
C. Before the dates described in A & B above, if _________________________
or State of New

Mexico Department of Finance and Administration Local Government Division determines
that the displacement was a direct result of conversion or demolition in connection with a
CDBG assisted activity; or

D. By a tenant-occupant of a dwelling unit, if any one of the following three situations occurs:
1.
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The tenant moves after execution of the CDBG agreement covering the
acquisition, rehabilitation or demolition and the move occurs before the tenant is

provided written notice offering the tenant the opportunity to lease and occupy a
suitable, decent, safe and sanitary dwelling in the same building/complex upon
completion of the project under reasonable terms and conditions, including a
monthly rent and estimated average monthly utility costs that do not exceed the
greater of the tenant’s monthly rent before such agreement, or the total tenant
payment as determined under 24 CFR 813.107 if the tenant is lower-income, or 30
percent of gross household income if the tenant is not lower-income.

2.

The tenant is required to relocate temporarily, does not return to the
building/complex, and either is not offered payment for all reasonable out-ofpocket expenses incurred in connection with the temporary relocation, or other
conditions of the temporary relocation are not reasonable.

3.

The tenant is required to move to another dwelling unit in the same
building/complex but is not offered reimbursement for all reasonable out-ofpocket expenses incurred in connection with the move, or other conditions of the
move are not reasonable.

If the displacement occurs on or after the appropriate date described in A & B above, the lower-income
person is not eligible for relocation assistance if:
A. The person is evicted for cause based upon a serious or repeated violation of the terms and
conditions of the lease or occupancy agreement, violation of applicable federal, State or local
Town of Silver City
law, or other good cause, and the _________________________
determines that the eviction
was not undertaken for the purpose of evading the obligation to provide relocation assistance;
B. The person moved into the property on or after the date described in A & B above after
receiving written notice of the expected displacement; or
Town of Silver City
determines that the displacement was not a direct result of the
C. _________________________
CDBG assisted activity and the State of New Mexico Department of Finance and
Administration Local Government Division concurs with this determination.

VII. Minimizing Displacement
The CDBG regulations regarding the demolition or conversion of lower-income dwelling units are
designed to ensure that lower-income persons are provided with adequate, affordable replacement
housing. Naturally, involuntary displacement should be discouraged whenever a reasonable alternative
exists. Involuntary displacement is extremely disruptive and disturbing, especially to lower-income
persons who do not have the means to locate alternative housing.
There are various ways that displacement can be minimized. The following are steps that will be taken
to minimize the involuntary displacement of lower-income persons when CDBG funds are involved:

A. Screening of Applications All CDBG applications will be reviewed to determine whether

involuntary displacement is likely to occur. Those applications involving displacement will
receive a lower priority recommendation for funding unless it can be shown that alternatives
are not available.

B. Acquisition of Property Applicants who apply for CDBG funds to acquire property for the
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development of lower-income housing will be encouraged to purchase vacant land. In the
case of in-fill and other projects where this is not feasible and the project involves potential
displacement, the applicant shall agree to allow the displaced lower-income person(s) to
occupy the new housing at an affordable rent.
Applicants who utilize CDBG funds to rehabilitate or convert a lower-income unit to a nonresidential use will be required to supply replacement housing consistent with paragraph IV,
as well as relocation assistance.

C. Cost of Relocation Assistance The cost of any required relocation assistance and the provision

of replacement housing will be borne by the applicant and may be paid for out of CDBG funds
awarded to the project.

VIII. Definitions

A. “Comparable replacement dwelling unit” means a dwelling unit that:
1

Meets the criteria of 49 CFR 24.2(d)(1) through (6); and

2

Is available at a monthly cost for rent plus estimated average monthly utility costs
that does not exceed the “Total Tenant Payment” determined under 24 CFR
813.107 after taking into account any rental assistance the household would
receive.

B. “Lower-income dwelling unit” means a dwelling unit with a market rental (including utility

costs) that does not exceed the applicable Fair Market Rent (FMR) for existing housing and
moderate rehabilitation established under 24 CFR Part 888.

C. “Standard condition” means units that at a minimum meet the Existing Housing Quality
Standards of the Section 8 rental subsidy program.

D. “Substandard condition suitable for rehabilitation” means units with code violations that can
be brought to Section 8 Housing Quality Standards within reasonable monetary amounts.

E. “Vacant occupiable dwelling unit” means a dwelling unit that is in a standard condition; a

vacant dwelling unit that is in substandard condition, but is suitable for rehabilitation; or a
dwelling unit in any condition that has been occupied (except by a squatter) at any time within
the period beginning 3 months before the date of execution of the agreement by
Town of Silver City
_________________________
covering the rehabilitation or demolition.

IX. Grievances
Town of Silver City
will provide timely written answers to written complaints and grievances
The _________________________
within 15 working days where practical. Action items:

A. Adopt complaint handling procedures or policies to insure that complaints or grievances are
responded to within 15 days, if possible.

B. Allow for appeal of a decision to a neutral authority.
C. File a detailed record of all complaints or grievances and responses in one central location
Rev 11-2020

with easy public access.

SECTION 3 PLAN REQUIRED ELEMENTS
Town of Silver City
The _________________________
is committed to comply with Section 3 of the Housing and Urban
Development Act of 1968. This Act encourages the use of small local businesses and the hiring of low
income residents of the community.

Feb. 9, 2021
Town of Silver City
The _________________________
has appointed ______________________________
as the Section 3
Coordinator, to advise and assist key personnel and staff on Section 3, to officially serve as focal point for
Section 3 complaints, and as the on-site monitor of prime contractors and sub-contractors to insure the
implementation and enforcement of their Section 3 plans. The approval or disapproval of the Section 3
Town of Silver City
plan is the ultimate responsibility of the _________________________
Documentation of efforts will be
retained on file for monitoring by the state.

Town of Silver City
shall:
Therefore, the _________________________
1. Hiring

Town of Silver City
Advertise for all _________________________
positions in local newspapers

a.
b.

Town of Silver City
List all __________________________
job opportunities with the State
Employment Service

c.

Give preference in hiring to lower income persons residing in
Town of Silver City
the_________________________.
This means that if two equally qualified
Town of Silver City
persons apply and one is a resident of the _________________________
and one
is not, the resident will be hired

d.

Town of Silver City
Maintain records of ________________________
hiring as specified in the CDBG
Resolution to Adopt CDBG Requirements (Exhibit 1-Y). Note: Chart for Section 3
Plan MUST be filled out in its entirety and updated with a CDBG grant agreement.

2. Contracting
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a.

Town of Silver City
The _________________________
will compile a list of businesses, suppliers and contractors
Town of Silver City
located in the_________________________.

b.

Town of Silver City
These vendors will be contacted for bid or quotes whenever the_________________________
requires supplies, services or construction.

c.

Preference will be given to small local businesses. This means if identical bids/quotes are received
Town of Silver City
from a small business located within the __________________________
and one from outside
Town
of
Silver
City
the _________________________, the contract will be awarded to the business located within
the community.

3. Training

Town of Silver City
The _________________________
shall maintain a list of all training programs operated by the
_________________________
and its agencies and will direct them to give preference to
Town of Silver City
Town of Silver City
Town of Silver City
_________________________
residents. The _________________________
will also direct all CDBG
sponsored training to provide preference to _________________________
residents.
Town of Silver City

4. CDBG Contracts
All CDBG bid proposals and contracts shall include the following Section 3 language.
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a.

The work to be performed under this contract is on a project assisted under a program providing
direct federal financial assistance from the Department of Housing and Urban Development and
is subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968,
as amended, 12 U.S.C. 170lu. Section 3 requires that the greatest extent feasible, opportunities
for training and employment be given lower income residents of the project areas, and contracts
for work in connection with the project be awarded to business concerns residing in the project
area.

b.

The parties to this contract will comply with the provision of said Section 3 and the regulations
issued pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development set forth in 24 CFR
and all applicable rules and orders of the Department issued there-under prior to the execution
of this contract. The parties to this contract certify and agree that they are under no contractual
or other disability which would prevent them from complying with these requirements.

c.

The contractor will send to each labor organization or representative of workers with which he
has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, if any, a notice advising
the said labor organization or workers' representative of his commitments under the Section 3
clause, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and
applicants for employment or training.

d.

The contractor will include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract for work in connection with
the project and will, at the direction of the applicant for, or recipient of federal financial
assistance, take appropriate action pursuant to the subcontract upon a finding that the
subcontractor is in violation of regulations issued by the Secretary of Housing and Urban
Development, 24 CFR 135. The contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where it
has notice or knowledge that the latter has been found in violation of regulations under 24 CFR
135, and will not let any subcontract unless the subcontractor has first provided it with the
requirements of these regulations.

e.

Compliance with the provisions of Section 3, the regulations set forth in 24 CFR 135, and all
applicable rules and orders of the Department, issued thereunder prior to the execution of the
contract, shall be a condition of the federal financial assistance provided to the project, binding
upon the applicant or recipient for such assistance, its successors and assigns. Failure to fulfill
these requirements shall subject the applicant or recipient, its contractors and subcontractors, its
successors and assigns to those sanctions specified by the grant or loan agreement or contract
through which federal assistance is provided, and to such sanctions as are specified by 24 CFR
135.

Town of Silver City
The _________________________
shall require each contractor to prepare a written Section 3 plan as a part of
their bids on all jobs exceeding $100,000. All Section 3 plans shall be reviewed and approved by the City's Equal
Opportunity Section 3 Compliance Officer and retained for monitoring by the state.

Town of Silver City
The _________________________
will maintain all necessary reports and will insure that all contractors and
subcontractors submit required reports.
LOWER INCOME CLARIFICATION

Town of Silver City
A family who resides in _________________________
and whose income does not exceed the income limit for
Town of Silver City
the size of family as per the attached Section 8 Income Limit for _________________________.
Information
Town of Silver City
contained in our Section 3 Plan reflects the status of the _________________________
employees regarding
Town of Silver City
lower income considerations based on their salary paid by the_________________________.
Certification
This Federal Requirements Plan hereby incorporates all of the State of New Mexico CDBG requirements to
include Citizen Participation, Fair Housing, Residential Anti-Displacement & Relocation as well as Section 3.
Town of Silver City
The _________________________
herewith certifies to follow the CDBG Federal Requirements Plan described
above and adopt the plan by resolution once throughout the term of the CDBG grant agreement.
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE
Town Council
_______________________
of ___________________
Silver City
on this _______________
9th
day of

of the ___________________
Town

February, 2021
__
_____________________
_.

ATTEST:

APPROVED AS TO FOR:

_______________________
Clerk
Town
____________

_______________________
Attorney
Town
____________

Plan Adoption Date:

Feb. 9, 2021
_______________

Adoption Instrument:

Resolution 2021-02
________________________________

Certified By:

________________________________

Ken Ladner
________________________________
Mayor
________________________________

Copy to Local Government Division with attachments
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________________
Date

TOWN OF SILVER CITY

TO:
FROM:
DATE:
RE:

P.O. Box 1188, Silver City, New Mexico 88062 (575) 538.3731 • FAX (575) 534-6377

Mayor, Council Members and Mr. Brown
Vanessa Cardenas, Purchasing Agent
February 2, 2021
BID# 20/21-4 Rebid Swan Street & 12th Street Road Diet and Bicycle Lane Improvements

The town has received one bid for the above referenced project. Bids were received on January 26, 2021 @ 11:00
a.m. and opened shortly after at the office of Stantec, 3400 Hwy 180 E, Suite A. Silver City, NM 88061.
The following bids were received:

CONTRACTOR
Southwest Concrete & Paving

BASE BID, ADDITIVE
ALTERNATE #1 AND
ADDITIVE ALTERNATE
#2
$
252,764.90

It is staff’s recommendation to award the bid as follows:
BID# 20/21-4 Rebid Swan Street & 12th Street Road Diet and Bicycle Lane Improvements
Southwest Concrete & Paving
BASE BID, ADDITIVE
ALTERNATE #1 AND
ADDITIVE
ALTERNATE #2

$

252,764.90

GROSS
RECEIPTS
TAX 8%

$

20,221.19

TOTAL
AMOUNT
OF PROJECT

$ 272,986.09

This recommendation is contingent upon the Town of Silver City contributing additional funding to award the project,
to include providing for a construction contingency; as well as obtaining NMDOT concurrence of award.
Sincerely,

Vanessa Cardenas
Vanessa Cardenas
Purchasing Agent

LEGAL NOTICE
The Town of Silver City Council will hold their remote Regular Meeting on Tuesday, February 9, 2021
at 6:00 PM. The meeting will be held remotely via GoToMeeting and in compliance with the NM Open
Meetings Act. Please join the meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. Silver City Town
Council Meeting on Tuesday, February 9, 2021 6:00 PM - 9:00 PM (MST).

Tue, Feb 9, 2021 6:00 PM - 9:00 PM (MST)
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/218215853
You can also dial in using your phone.
United States: +1 (669) 224-3412
Access Code: 218-215-853

Public input must be submitted by email by 4:00 PM on February 8, 2021 to the Town Clerk at
townclerk@silvercitynm.gov. Please enter “Public Input” in the subject line of the email. The
comments will be distributed to the Mayor and Council and be entered into the record of the Council
Meeting. The action items on the agenda include:
Approval of Minutes: January 26, 2021 Regular Council Meeting
Public Hearings
Unfinished Business
New Business:
A. Approval / Disapproval of Resolution No. 2021-02: A Resolution adopting the Town’s “Fair Housing
Policy”, “Citizen Participation Plan”, “HUD Section 3 Plan”, “Residential Anti-Displacement and
Relocation Plan and Certification”, and “CDBG Procurement Policy” for the Town of Silver City,
Grant County, NM.
B. Approval / Disapproval of Bid #20/21-4: Re-Bid Swan Street & 12th Street Road Diet and
Bicycle Lane Improvements.
Adjournment.
The agenda is available in the Agenda Center of the Town’s website at www.townofsilvercity.org. If you
are an individual with a disability who needs a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language interpreter, or any
other form of auxiliary aid service to attend or participate in the hearing or meeting, contact the Town
Clerk at 534-6346 at least one week prior to the meeting or as soon as possible. Public documents,
including the agenda and minutes, can be provided in various accessible formats. Please contact The Town
Clerk if summary or other type of accessible format is needed.

